
 
North Central Public Health District 

 

“Caring For Our Communities” 
 

North Central Public Health District 
Board of Health Meeting 
 

March 8, 2016 
3:00 PM 
Meeting Room @ 
NCPHD 

 
AGENDA  -  

 
1. Minutes 

a. Approve from February 9, 2016 meeting. 
b. Set Next Meeting Date (April 12, 2016) 

 
2. Additions to the Agenda 

 
3. Public Comment 

 
4. Unfinished Business 

a. Update on Sugar Sweetened Beverage Reduction Program – Presentation by Kelsey Fried 
b. CGCCO – One Time Funding ($90,000) 
c. Accreditation Update 
d. Draft budget calendar & budget committee members 

 
5. New Business 

a. CIS Risk Management Plan 
b. Executive Committee Proposal – Commissioner Smith 
c. Review of A/P checks issued (February 2016) 
d. Policies & Procedures 

i. VISA Credit Card Policy 
ii. Travel Policy 

e. Contracts 
i. OHSU PSC-2016-0858  
ii. 1004396 Wasco Cacoon – Amendment 1 

f. Director’s Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Note: This agenda is subject to last minute changes. 
 
Meetings are ADA accessible. If special accommodations are needed please contact NCPHD in advance at (541) 506-
2626.  TDD 1-800-735-2900.  NCPHD does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities. 
 
 

**If necessary, an Executive Session may be held in accordance with: ORS 192.660 (2) (d) Labor Negotiations; ORS 
192.660 (2) (h) Legal Rights; ORS 192.660 (2) (e) Property; ORS 192.660 (2) (i) Personnel** 
 



 

S:\MEETING MINUTES & AGENDAS\BOARD OF HEALTH MEETINGS\MINUTES\2016\BOH MEETING MINUTES 2-9-2016 DRAFT.DOC 
 

1 
 

 
  

NORTH CENTRAL PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

“Caring For Our Communities” 
 

419 East Seventh Street 
The Dalles, OR 97058-2676 

541-506-2600 
www.ncphd.org 

 

North Central Public Health District 
Board of Health 

Meeting Minutes 
February 9, 2016 (3:00pm) 

 
 
In Attendance:  Commissioner Mike Smith – Sherman County; Roger Whitley – Sherman County; Linda Thompson – Sherman 
County; Judge Steve Shaffer – Gilliam County; Michael Takagi – Gilliam County; Commissioner Scott Hege – Wasco County; and Fred 
Schubert – Wasco County.    
 
Staff Present:  Teri Thalhofer, RN BSN – Director NCPHD; Kathi Hall – Finance Manager NCPHD; Dr. Mimi McDonell – Health Officer 
 
Guests Present:  Coco Yackley – Columbia Gorge CCO ; Molly Rogers – Wasco County representative to the Columbia Gorge CCO 
 
Minutes taken by Gloria Perry 
 
Meeting called to order on February 9, 2016 at 3:02pm by Commissioner Mike Smith. 
 

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS TAKEN 
 

Motion by Fred Schubert, second by Commissioner Hege, to approve the minutes from the 1/12/16 board of health meeting as 
corrected.  
 
Vote:  7-0 
Yes: Commissioner Mike Smith, Roger Whitley, Linda Thompson, Judge Steve Shaffer, Michael Takagi, Commissioner 

Scott Hege, and Fred Schubert. 
No: 0 
Abstain:  
Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Roger Whitley second by Michael Takagi, to approve the A/P Checks Issued in January 2016 report as presented.  
 
Vote:  7-0 
Yes: Commissioner Mike Smith, Roger Whitley, Linda Thompson, Judge Steve Shaffer, Michael Takagi, Commissioner 

Scott Hege, and Fred Schubert. 
No: 0 
Abstain:  
Motion carried. 

http://www.ncphd.org/


 

S:\MEETING MINUTES & AGENDAS\BOARD OF HEALTH MEETINGS\MINUTES\2016\BOH MEETING MINUTES 2-9-2016 DRAFT.DOC 
 

2 
 

Motion by Judge Steve Shaffer second by Fred Schubert, to approve Return-to-Work Policy as corrected.  
 
Vote:  7-0 
Yes: Commissioner Mike Smith, Roger Whitley, Linda Thompson, Judge Steve Shaffer, Michael Takagi, Commissioner 

Scott Hege, and Fred Schubert. 
No: 0 
Abstain:  
Motion carried. 
 
WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS 
 

1. MINUTES 
a. Approval of past meeting minutes 

• Minutes were approved with the following correction: 
 Section i. > Directors Report > OR Reproductive Health Program:  Instead of saying “in calendar 

year NCPHD averted 173 unintended pregnancies” it was suggested that this sentence be re-
worded to say: “Based on the statistical data available, NCPHD averted 173 unintended 
pregnancies.” 

b. Set next meeting date 
• The next regular meeting was scheduled for Tuesday, March 8, 2016 at 3:00 PM.  Meeting location will be 

at the North Central Public District office located at 419 E. 7th Street, The Dalles, OR. 
 

2. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
a. Columbia Gorge Health Council Funding (under New Business) 
b. Budget Committee & Budget Process (under New Business) 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

a. None 
 

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Updates from Wasco County – Wasco County Project Plan 

• Commissioner Hege had no updates to provide. 
• Board member Linda Thompson asked Commissioner Hege if he could clarify the meanings of his statements 

that were in The Dalles Chronicle on Jan 26th regarding budget cuts, etc.  Commissioner Hege responded 
that he would be happy to meet with Linda at another time to discuss this with her. 

• Teri asked the board for direction regarding whether or not the quarterly report requested by Wasco 
County needs to be continued.  After discussion, Commissioner Hege said he would ask his commission but 
felt the quarterly report did not need to continue to be provided to Wasco County. 

b. Current Status of Services 
• We continue to operate at two half days a week of walk-in service. 
• Clinic is operating at 2 days a week for appointments. 
• Update on open positions: 

 Clinical Program Supervisor: 
 Has been filled by Shellie Campbell who was our Tobacco Prevention & Education Program 

Coordinator.  
 Tobacco Prevention & Education Program Coordinator 

 First round of interviews completed.  Second round of interviews scheduled for this Thursday.  
We expect to make an offer of employment by Friday. 

 Nurse Practitioner 
 This position is shared with Hood River County Health Department. 
 Because we had so few nurses apply for this position, we had a discussion with HR County 

about opening this position to a NP (Nurse Practitioner) or a PA (Physician’s Assistant). 



 

S:\MEETING MINUTES & AGENDAS\BOARD OF HEALTH MEETINGS\MINUTES\2016\BOH MEETING MINUTES 2-9-2016 DRAFT.DOC 
 

3 
 

 Dr. McDonell was willing to supervisor a PA here and initially, the Health Officer in Hood River 
was also willing to provide that over-site in Hood River. 

 After the position was opened we only had one applicant who had no work experience. 
 On further evaluation, Hood River decided to go out on their own to see if they could find 

someone who was willing to work 2-days a week because they didn’t feel like they had the 
ability to train and supervise a brand new PA. 

 Dr. McDonell has offered to fill that clinician role in The Dalles.  There are funds within the 
budget for her to step into that role.  Dr. McDonell will continue as our Health Office and 
Medical Examiner for Wasco & Sherman Counties as well. 

 This will provide significantly more access and we plan to advertise that this access is 
available. 

   
5. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Playspent.org 
• This is an interactive online game that Teri asked the board to participate in.  It’s designed to help people 

understand the challenges and trade-offs faced by low-income people with insecure employment. 
b. Columbia Gorge Health Council Funding 

• Coco Yackley and Molly Rogers representing the Columbia Gorge CCO discussed with the board the one-
time $90,000 payment that the CCO is paying to NCPHD.   

• This payment is not to supplement county dollars or supplement other funding streams to the health 
department but to support the important role of health departments in safety-net services such as 
immunizations, support for pregnant and parenting families, family planning, and treatment and prevention 
of contagious illnesses.  

• The CCO is leaving it up to the health district on how best to spend these funds, however the CCO would 
encourage a focus around things that have to do with where the quality incentive measures are.  It was also 
mentioned these funds ultimately came from Medicaid, so as practical and possible these funds should be 
directed toward Medicaid residents in Wasco County. 

• An MOU will be going out soon and a check will be issued once that has been fully executed. 
• A report will be due to the CCO in January 2017 regarding how the money was used and what we achieved 

with it and this is the outcome. 
• After discussion, the board asked Teri and leadership team to develop and implement a plan.  Once a plan 

has been developed, Teri will email that plan out to the board of health as an FYI. 
c. Budget Committee & Budget Process 

• Currently Teri and Kathi are meeting with managers and staff regarding their respective budget(s). 
• Teri and Kathi will work on creating a proposed budget to take to the NCPHD budget committee. 
• Next step in the budget process is identifying budget committee members. 

 Each county appoints one public member who is not currently serving on the board to serve along 
with one other county court member to be on the budget committee. 

 Commissioner Smith asked Gloria Perry to contact each county’s court administrator to check with 
the public members to ensure they are still available to serve.  Since Linda Thompson is now a board 
member she is not eligible to participate as a public member on the budget committee. 

 Public members are: 
 Angie Wilson – Wasco County (3-year term) 
 Leah Watkins – Gilliam County (1-year term) 
 Vacancy – Sherman County (needs to be a 2-year term) 

 Budget Process: 
 A discussion was held regarding the budget process for entities that each of the counties 

jointly participate in with a focus on Wasco County’s budget committee process and 
there not being an explanation of the dollar amount in the Wasco county budget for 
NCPHD. 

 Judge Shaffer recommended that Wasco County’s budget team should come to 
NCPHD’s budget committee meeting and is part of that budget discussion.  He does not 
feel that NCPHD should have to come to Wasco County’s budget committee meetings 



 

S:\MEETING MINUTES & AGENDAS\BOARD OF HEALTH MEETINGS\MINUTES\2016\BOH MEETING MINUTES 2-9-2016 DRAFT.DOC 
 

4 
 

and “sell” their proposed budget.  He continued saying that perhaps it is Wasco County’s 
budget officer that comes to these meetings. 

 Commissioner Hege said he would pass along this request and he will work to make sure 
there is better communication during the budget process. 

• Budget challenges: 
 Staff has not had a COLA in two years and the last increase was 1.5%. 
 Difficulty recruiting nurses.  In comparing school nurses between NCPHD and MCMC, the top of 

NCPHD wage scale is 35% below the bottom of MCMC’s school nursing wage. 
d. Review of A/P checks issued (January 2016) 

• Report reviewed and approved as presented. 
e. Policy & Procedures: 

• Return-to-Work Policy 
 This policy provides clarity of the responsibilities an employee and employer has if an on-the-job 

injury occurs. 
 Correction made on page 2 under Employee Responsibilities > Worker able to return to work > 2nd 

bullet.  Sentence should read:  The worker cannot return to work without a release from the 
attending physician. 

 Motion made to approve Return to Work Policy with correction noted. 
f. Contracts Reviewed: 

• Teri reviewed the following contracts with the board: 
 OHA 148025-2 
 OCDC 02-031-4 
 United Healthcare 

g. Director’s Report 
• Teri reviewed her director’s report. 

 
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:37pm 
 
 
 
 
________________________________     _________________ 
Commissioner Michael Smith, Chair     Date 
 
{Copy of 1/12/2016 board of health meeting minutes, Pacific Source Press Release, A/P Checks Issued – Jan 2016 Report, Return-
to-Work Policy, OHA 148025-2 Agreement, OCDC 02-031-4 Agreement, United Healthcare Agreement, Directors Report attached 
and made part of this record.} 



S:\Columbia Gorge CCO\Proposal for one-time CGCCO funding 02232016.doc 

 
  

NORTH CENTRAL PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

“Caring For Our Communities” 
 

419 East Seventh Street 
The Dalles, OR 97058-2676 

541-506-2600 
www.ncphd.org 

 
Proposal for One-Time CGCCO Funding 

 
In anticipation of receiving an MOU from CGCC for a one-time payment of $90,000, NCPHD’s 
leadership team has outlined below their proposal in how to utilize these funds.  These funds 
are to be utilized within 12-months; therefore the proposed positions would be considered a 1-
year temporary position. 
 

• 1.0 FTE Health Educator (a new NCPHD position to support communicable disease 
activities led by the 0.6 FTE CD RN).  This position would also support obesity 
reduction activities to increase physical activity. 

o A current RN with CD back-up responsibilities would move to staffing the clinic 
and this would facilitate walk-in services during all hours open to the public, 
while continuing to support CD work and maintaining coordination of the 
reproductive health program. 

o COST:  $62,973 
 

• 0.6 FTE Administrative staff (Office Specialist II) to support the increased volume of 
clients and associated work for full-time clinic staffing. 

o COST:  $21,552 
 

• $15/day funding for professional staff to rotate CD call to provide for additional surge 
capacity to respond to a communicable disease emergency. 

o COST:  $5,475 
 
CCO Quality Incentive Metrics Affected: 
 

• Effective contraceptive use among women at risk of unintended pregnancy (ages 15-
50).  Measure description:  Percentage of adult women (ages 15-50) with evidence of 
one of the most effective or moderately effective contraceptive methods during the 
measurement year: IUD, implant, contraception injection, contraceptive pills, 
sterilizations, patch, ring, or diaphragm.  Purpose:  Almost 50 percent of pregnancies in 
Oregon are unintended.  Among women with an unintended pregnancy, 43 percent 
reported using contraception, but they were using it incorrectly or inconsistently. 
 

• Childhood immunization status Measure description:  Percentage of children who 
received recommended vaccines (services 4:3:1:3:3:1:4) before their second birthday.  
Purpose:  Vaccines are one of the safest, easiest and most effective ways to protect 

http://www.ncphd.org/


S:\Columbia Gorge CCO\Proposal for one-time CGCCO funding 02232016.doc 

children from potentially serious disease.  Vaccines are also cost-effective tools which 
help to prevent the spread of serious diseases which can sometimes lead to 
widespread public health threats. 
 

• Chlamydia screening Measure description:  Percentage of sexually active women 
(ages 16-24) who had a test for Chlamydia infection.  Purpose:  Chlamydia is the one 
of the most common reportable illness in Oregon.  Since there are usually no 
symptoms, routine screening is important to find the disease early so that it can be 
treated and cured with antibiotics.  If Chlamydia is not found and treated early, it can 
lead to pelvic inflammatory disease, which can cause infertility. 

• Immunization for adolescents Measure description:  Percentage of adolescents who 
received recommended vaccines (Meningococcal and Tdap/TD) before their 13th 
birthday.  Purpose:  Like young children, adolescents also benefit from immunizations.  
Vaccines are a safe, easy and cost-effective way to prevent serious disease.  Vaccines 
are also cost-effective tools that help prevent the spread of serious and sometimes 
fatal diseases. 

 
Other Metrics Supported by NCPHD: 
 

• Developmental screening in the first 36 months of life Measure description:  
Percentage of children who were screened for risks of developmental, behavioral and 
social delays using standardized screening tools in the 12 months preceding their first, 
second or third birthday.  Purpose:  Early childhood screening helps find delays in 
development as early as possible, which leads to better health outcomes and reduced 
costs.  Early developmental screening provides an opportunity to refer children to the 
appropriate specialty care before problems worsen.  Often, developmental delays are 
not found until kindergarten or later – well beyond the time when treatments are most 
helpful. 
 

• Measure description:  Percentage of eligible providers within a CCO’s network and 
service area who qualified for a “meaningful use” incentive payment during the 
measurement year through the Medicaid, Medicare, or Medicare Advantage HER 
Incentive Programs.  Purpose:  Electronic health records have the potential to improve 
coordination of care, increase patient safety, reduce medical error, and contain health 
care costs by reducing costly, duplicative tests.  Physicians who use electronic health 
records use information available to make the most appropriate clinical decisions. 
 

• Well-child visits in the first 15 months of life Measure description:  Percentage of 
children who had six visits with their health care provider prior to reaching 15 months of 
age.  Purpose:  Regular well-child visits are one of the best ways to detect physical, 
developmental, behavioral and emotional problems in infants.   They are also an 
opportunity for providers to offer guidance and counseling to parents. 
 

• Medical assistance with smoking and tobacco use cessation. 
 

• Obesity prevalence. 
 

• Tobacco use prevalence. 



DRAFT BUDGET CALENDAR FOR 2016/2017 BUDGET 

 

1. Budget meetings with program managers – 02/16 – 3/3 
 

2. First draft of budget will be put together between 3/8 - 3/10 by Kathi. 
 

3. Budget Team (Teri & Kathi) will meet as needed to balance budget. 
 

4. Complete second draft done 3/15 - 3/17 
 

5. Send draft budget request amounts to Counties – 3/17 
 

6. 1st notice of Budget Committee Meeting to paper by (Mon.) for publication (Thurs.)  

(17 days prior to budget committee meeting) 
 

7. 2nd notice of Budget Committee Meeting to paper by (Mon.) for publication (Thurs.) 

(10 days prior to budget committee meeting) 
 

8. Complete  final Proposed Budget Document (week prior to Budget Distribution) 
 

9. Compile Budget Document for distribution (week prior to Budget Distribution) 
 

10. Budget Document to be distributed to Budget Committee (2 weeks prior to Budget Committee 
Session) 
 

11. Budget Committee Session (need date) 
Receive Budget Message 
Review Proposed Budget 
Approve Budget 

 
12. Legal Notice of Budget Hearing to paper by 3/23 for publication 3/26. 

(18 days prior to Budget Hearing) 
 

13. Hold Budget Hearing (Governing Body) and Adopt Budget at June 14 board meeting. 
 
 



Risk Management Plan
Fiscal Year:  2015-2016

Entity Name: North Central Public Health District Developed: 3/4/2016

Mailing Address: 419 E 7th St Modified: 3/4/2016

Physical Address: 419 E 7th St Next Review:

City / State / Zip: The Dalles, OR  97058

Phone: 541-506-2600 Risk Management Consultant:

Fax: 541-506-2601 John Zakariassen

Website: http://www.wshd.org/

Employee Count: 30 Risk Management Coordinator(s):

Policy Information

Line of Coverage Premium Agency Agent

Property/Liability Coverage

Auto Liability $3,393.58 Courtney Insurance Agency, Inc. Mike Courtney

Auto Physical Damage $1,274.14 Courtney Insurance Agency, Inc. Mike Courtney

General Liability $9,045.27 Courtney Insurance Agency, Inc. Mike Courtney

Property $242.50 Courtney Insurance Agency, Inc. Mike Courtney

Workers' Compensation Not Purchased

Excess Crime Not Purchased

Excess Earthquake Not Purchased

Excess Flood Not Purchased

Excess Cyber Liability Not Purchased

Benefits Coverage

Medical Yes

Dental Yes

Life Yes

Note: Premium totals reflect applicable credit(s).

Page 1 of 4Report Date: 3/4/2016



Page 2 of 4Report Date: 3/4/2016



Claims Information
The following table contains 5 years of claims history and Loss Ratios by line of coverage from 2013-2014 through 2014-
2015.  The overall loss ratio of 8% is lower than the target loss ratio of 30%.

Line of Coverage 
(Years w/ Coverage)

Number of 
Claims Losses Average Cost 

per Claim
Percentage of 

Losses Loss Ratio

Auto Liability (2 years) 1 $1,508.53 $1,508.53 100% 32%

Auto Physical Damage (2 years) 0 $0.00 $0.00 0% 0%

General Liability (2 years) 0 $0.00 $0.00 0% 0%

Property (2 years) 0 $0.00 $0.00 0% 0%

Overall Loss Ratio 1 $1,508.53 $1,508.53 100% 8%

Page 3 of 4Report Date: 3/4/2016



Best Practices Review
The overall score on the last Best Practices survey (3/4/2016) was 87%. The following recommendations organized by 
risk category were taken directly from the survey where answers did not score the most possible points.  Additionally, the 
following unique risks were identified:

Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) and Agility By 
Whom

By 
When

Goal: Ensure your entity has populated the recommended data on the Agility Recovery website.

Recommendation: The link to the Agility Recovery website is located on our CIS website at 
https://www.cisoregon.org/webportal/services/EmergencyMgmt.aspx.

Executive Risk Management (ERM)Team By 
Whom

By 
When

Goal: Establish a multi-departmental leadership ERM (Executive Risk Management) team.

Recommendation: You can find our executive risk management team resources on the CIS website at 
https://www.cisoregon.org/webportal/trust/RMBonusProgram.aspx.

Page 4 of 4Report Date: 3/4/2016



Check Date Check 
Number

Vendor Name Amount

12/31/2015 223 IRS $1,952.29 
12/31/2015 224 DEPT OF REVENUE OREGON STATE $435.66 
12/31/2015 225 ASIFLEX $30.00 
12/31/2015 226 P E R S $1,254.39 
1/25/2016 234 P E R S $7,316.73 
2/10/2016 236 IRS $8,244.12 Payroll A/P (EFT) 
2/10/2016 237 ASIFLEX $285.00 
2/10/2016 238 P E R S $7,223.51 
2/10/2016 239 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $1,964.06 
2/25/2016 240 IRS $8,782.51 
2/25/2016 241 ASIFLEX $285.00 

Reserved in Que 242
2/25/2016 243 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $2,076.33 
2/3/2016 11184 CIS TRUST $21,582.34 
2/3/2016 11185 SEUFERT ENTERPRISES, LLC DBA $4,920.00 
2/8/2016 11186 CYTOCHECK LABORATORY LLC $190.00 
2/8/2016 11187 H2OREGON BOTTLED WATER INC. $39.50 
2/8/2016 11188 HENRY SCHEIN $913.61 
2/8/2016 11189 MID-COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER $337.50 
2/8/2016 11190 OPTIMIST PRINTERS $397.00 
2/8/2016 11191 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 

QUA
$200.00 

2/8/2016 11192 PARAGARD DIRECT $1,157.10 
2/8/2016 11193 QWIK CHANGE LUBE CENTER INC. $40.50 
2/8/2016 11194 RICOH USA INC. $147.74 
2/8/2016 11195 SANOFI PASTEUR INC. $587.75 
2/8/2016 11196 SATCOM GLOBAL INC. $52.06 
2/8/2016 11197 SMITH MEDICAL PARTNERS LLC $1,565.56 
2/8/2016 11198 SPARKLE CAR WASH, LLC $16.00 
2/8/2016 11199 STAEHNKE, DAVID $87.57 
2/8/2016 11200 STERICYCLE INC. $517.91 
2/8/2016 11201 UPS $57.62 
2/8/2016 11202 US BANK $421.56 
2/8/2016 11203 WASCO COUNTY $351.22 
2/11/2016 11204 AHLERS & ASSOCIATES $800.00 
2/11/2016 11205 BEERY ELSNER & HAMMOND LLP $202.50 
2/11/2016 11206 CURASCRIPT SPECIALTY, DISTRIBUTION $5,350.80 

2/11/2016 11207 DEVIN OIL CO INC. $66.92 
2/11/2016 11208 DMV $92.50 
2/11/2016 11209 OFFICE MAX INCORPORATED $99.59 
2/11/2016 11210 OPTIMIST PRINTERS $79.98 
2/11/2016 11211 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF HUMAN SERVICES $10,463.59 

2/11/2016 11212 QWIK CHANGE LUBE CENTER INC. $35.95 
2/11/2016 11213 SAIF CORPORATION $743.00 
2/11/2016 11214 SMITH MEDICAL PARTNERS LLC $320.24 

NCPHD
Accounts Payable Checks

Issued - February 2016



2/11/2016 11215 WASCO COUNTY $155.15 
2/16/2016 11216 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 
2/16/2016 11217 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION $865.00 
2/18/2016 11218 SEUFERT ENTERPRISES, LLC DBA $50.00 
2/18/2016 11219 THE DALLES NAPA AUTO PARTS INC $19.99 
2/18/2016 11220 U.S. CELLULAR $237.81 
2/18/2016 11221 UPS $103.46 
2/22/2016 11222 OREGON STATE, DEPT HUMAN SERVICES-

OFS
$220.00 

2/22/2016 11223 OREGON STATE, DEPT HUMAN SERVICES-
OFS

$1,904.79 

2/22/2016 11224 STAEHNKE, DAVID $112.59 
2/22/2016 11225 BIG PRODUCTIONS, INC. $8,345.00 
2/29/2016 11226 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 
2/29/2016 11227 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION $865.00 

TOTAL: $105,029.00 

NCPHD Board of Health authorizes check numbers 11184 - 11227 and payroll EFT numbers 223 - 226,
236 - 241, & 243 totalling $105,029.00

Signed:_______________________________________________________    Date: __________________
               Commissioner Michael Smith, Chair

Payroll A/P Checks

Payroll A/P Checks



 

S:\Policies and Procedures New Matrix 2014\Administrative Policies\Human Resources\VISA Credit 
Card\AD_VISA Credit Card_03022016 DRAFT.docx 

1 

North Central Public Health District  Policies and Procedures 
 
TOPIC: VISA Credit Card 
Effective Date: 01022014 
Revised:   
Reviewed: 03022016 
 

Regulation/ Reference: 
 

AREA OF SERVICE: AD Program Responsible:  Admin 
 

Approved By: NCPHD Board of Health 
 
Title:  Michael Smith, Chair 

Approval Level Required: 
    X       Board                             _____ Director 
 _____Legal Counsel                ____ Health Officer 
_____ Supervisor                      _____Department 

 
AD-VISA CREDIT CARD-03022016 

 
POLICY 
This policy establishes guidelines for the issuance and use of NCPHD credit cards and 
procurement cards. 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to outline expectations for use and reporting of expenses 
on NCPHD provided credit cards to authorized staff. 
 
PROCEDURE 
Credit Card Issuance: 
Credit cards may be issued to staff whose role requires such purchases to be made 
through use of a VISA credit card.  Cards are issued in the employee’s name and North 
Central Public Health District.   

 
Employees receiving  a NCPHD credit card will be required to sign a Cardholder 
Acceptance letter stating they understand their responsibilities.  This policy and any 
related forms or procedures referenced in this policy will be reviewed with the 
employee by the Finance Manager before any charges can be made by the employee. 

 
Credit Card Limits: 
Credit lines will be determined by position and role in the agency.  Cash advances are 
not authorized or available on NCPHD credit cards. 
 
Credit Cardholder Responsibility: 
Agency credit cards are to be used for NCPHD expenses only.  All expenses must 
follow all other policies related to employee purchasing and authorized expenditures.  
This includes the use of purchase orders, training & travel authorizations and other 
forms as required or outlined in the employee manual or the fiscal purchasing policy.  
  
Cardholders must maintain a Visa Expense Form (found on the Shared drive) detailing 
expenses made during the month.  Instructions for the Visa Expense Form are available 



 

S:\Policies and Procedures New Matrix 2014\Administrative Policies\Human Resources\VISA Credit 
Card\AD_VISA Credit Card_03022016 DRAFT.docx 

2 

on the Shared drive.  The Visa Expense Form must be reconciled to the total amount of 
purchases on the current months VISA statement. 
 
All receipts for the current VISA statement charges must be attached to the Visa 
Expense Form.   
 
Manager Responsibility: 
Each approving manager is responsible for reviewing the expenses submitted by their 
staff for validity, accuracy and compliance and appropriate documentation for timely 
approval of the expenses.   The supervisor then must submit the documentation to the 
executive assistant.   
 
If the credit cardholder is in default of any of the above responsibilities the credit 
card may be suspended. 
 
Receipt Substantiation: 
In order to remain in compliance with federal and state reporting requirements, receipts 
must be submitted that detail the expense.  Receipts that only show the amount 
charged are not acceptable.  If the employee does not have the receipt then a Missing 
Receipts form must be completed and included with other supporting documents. 
 
Lost, Stolen or Compromised Credit Cards: 
If the employee’s credit card is lost or stolen the employee must contact the credit card 
company immediately to report it.   The employee must confirm the telephone call to the 
credit card company by email to the executive assistant. 
 
Disputes/Unauthorized Charges: 
Credit cardholders are responsible for ensuring the accuracy and validity of transactions 
billed to their credit card.  The credit cardholder is responsible for resolving disputed 
charges and following up that the errors have been corrected on their billing statements.  
. 
 
Departing Employee: 
Employee will surrender the card immediately upon termination of employment, whether 
for retirement, voluntary or involuntary reasons. 
 
  



 

S:\Policies and Procedures New Matrix 2014\Administrative Policies\Human Resources\VISA Credit 
Card\AD_VISA Credit Card_03022016 DRAFT.docx 

3 

Employee Acknowledgement and Understanding of NCPHD Credit Card Policy: 
 
 
Employee:___________________________ 
 
 
 
_____________________________________  _________________________ 
Employee signature      Date 
 
 

Reviewed By:       Date: 
 
 Teri Thalhofer, RN     1/2/2014   
 
 
___________________________________   ______________ 

      
 
 
 



 

S:\Policies and Procedures New Matrix 2014\Administrative Policies\Human 
Resources\Travel\AD_Travel_03022016.docx 

1 

North Central Public Health District  Policies and Procedures 
 
TOPIC: Travel 
 
Effective Date: 07012014 
Revised:  03022016 
Reviewed:   

Regulation Referenced: 
 

AREA OF SERVICE: AD Program Responsible: Admin 
 

Approved By: NCPHD Board of Health 
 
Title:  Michael Smith, Chair 

Approval Level Required: 
     X      Board                             _____ Director 
 _____Legal Counsel                _____ Health Officer 
_____ Supervisor                      _____Department 

  
 

AD_Travel Policy_03022016 
 
POLICY 

 
NCPHD employees will follow NCPHD travel guidelines as well as, federal and 
state guidelines while traveling on official business for NCPHD.  Employees will 
be reimbursed for normal and customary expenses incurred while conducting 
official NCPHD business.  
 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to provide general guidelines for NCPHD employees 
while traveling on official business for NCPHD.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 
All conferences and trainings must have prior approval from your immediate 
supervisor and the completion of a Conference / Training Authorization Request 
form. 
 
Travel Time 
Travel away from the home community:  Travel that keeps an employee away 
from home overnight is travel away from home.  Travel away from home is work 
time when it cuts across the employee’s workday.  The employee is substituting 
travel for other duties.  The time is not only hours worked on regular working 
days during normal working hours but also during the corresponding hours on 
non-working days.  Time that is spent in travel away from home outside of 
regular work hours as a passenger on an airplane, train, boat, bus, or automobile 
is considered work time. 
  



 

S:\Policies and Procedures New Matrix 2014\Administrative Policies\Human 
Resources\Travel\AD_Travel_03022016.docx 

2 

One Day Travel 
 
Non-Overnight Meals: 
Meal expenses incurred while traveling within Oregon or outside of Oregon for 
only one day, without staying overnight, are taxable if reimbursed.  These 
expenses should be recorded with other travel expenses on the same voucher 
and reimbursed through Payroll.  Meal expenses for same day travel are not 
normally appropriate unless the reason for travel does not allow time for the 
employee to get a meal.  Generally speaking, coffee on the way to a business 
meeting or snacks would not be appropriate expenditures of NCPHD funds. 
 
Overnight Travel 
 
Meal Expenses 
Meal expenses are allowed according to the guidelines listed below.  Gratuities 
are considered part of the meal allowance at the discretion of the employee.  
Gratuities will not be reimbursed separately.  Itemized receipts are required. 
 
Meal expenses are allowed under the following conditions: 
 
1. First day of travel:  A meal is allowed if the employee leaves the official 

workstation, or place of residence if authorized, exclusive of eating time. 
These times are based on a work schedule of 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and may 
be adjusted for individual work schedules if reasonable. 

 
2. Final day of travel:  A meal allowance on the day of return is allowed if the 

employee returns to the official workstation, or place of residence if 
authorized, exclusive of eating time.  These times are based on a work 
schedule of 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and may be adjusted for individual work 
schedules if reasonable. 

 
3. Meal rates will be based on the State of Oregon GSA Domestic Per Diem 

Rates. This table provides listings of cities in Oregon with rates for meals that 
exceed the standard rate. (www.gsa.gov). 

 
4. Personnel assigned to attend a conference shall be reimbursed for the actual 

cost of a meal (including gratuities) when such meal is an agenda item, where 
attendance is required, and the selection and cost of the meal is beyond the 
control of personnel.  Personnel do not receive a meal allowance when the 
cost of the meal is included in the conference registration fee. 

 
Lodging Expenses 
1. Personnel will request the “government rate” when making lodging 

reservations for official county business. 
 

http://www.gsa.gov/


 

S:\Policies and Procedures New Matrix 2014\Administrative Policies\Human 
Resources\Travel\AD_Travel_03022016.docx 

3 

2. Reimbursement allowances for lodging will be based on the State of Oregon 
GSA Domestic Per Diem Rates.  Lodging taxes are included in these rates. 

 
3. Whenever possible and appropriate, employees will share a room. 

 
4. If personnel are attending a conference or meeting and are staying at an 

official hotel/motel for that conference or meeting, actual lodging expenses 
are allowed 

 
5. Itemized receipts are required for lodging and taxes. 

 
Transportation Expenses 
 
1. Use of a NCPHD owned vehicle is the preferred method of transportation.  

Use of a *personal vehicle requires prior authorization before mileage 
reimbursement will be made.  Reimbursement for use of a personal vehicle 
will be made only for those miles traveled on behalf of the department.   
Employees are asked to record mileage on the “employee expense account” 
form which can be found on the shared drive in the VISA expense report and 
employee reimbursement request folder. 

 
2. When a NCPHD owned vehicle is not available the reimbursement of 

expenses for authorized travel by private vehicle is current the federal rate. 
 

3. It is understood that for purposes of convenience, such as an employee who 
resides in Hood River, he or she may choose to use their own vehicle but 
they will not be reimbursed for travel expenses. 
 

Telephone Calls 
  
1. If using hotel telephone, personnel may make one personal telephone call for 

every day of travel.  Telephone calls should be kept to a minimum length of 
time.  Usually 5 to 10 minutes. 

 
Miscellaneous Expenses 
 
1. Expenses not payable with VISA, such as parking, will be reimbursed once 

the employee completes a personal expense form with receipts attached. 
 
2. Extenuating circumstances regarding lodging and meals expenses will be 

discussed with the employee’s supervisor and approval received before 
expenses are incurred. 

 
  



 

S:\Policies and Procedures New Matrix 2014\Administrative Policies\Human 
Resources\Travel\AD_Travel_03022016.docx 

4 

Expenses Not Covered include but are not limited to the following: 
• Alcohol 
• Entertainment 
• Access to sporting events 
• Gym fees 
• Pay per view movies 

 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY:        DATE: 
 

     04292011 
 

     03232012 
 
 
_______________________________    ________________ 
 
_______________________________    ________________ 
  



 

S:\Policies and Procedures New Matrix 2014\Administrative Policies\Human 
Resources\Travel\AD_Travel_03022016.docx 

5 



 

S:\Policies and Procedures New Matrix 2014\Administrative Policies\Human 
Resources\Travel\AD_Travel_03022016.docx 

6 

 



roycejoh
Typewritten Text
Purchase Order #1900879























This Contract and subsequent amendments to this Contract will not be effective and no work shall begin until the authorized 
representatives of both OHSU and Contractor have signed below indicating agreement with the above scope of work and terms & 
conditions. 

Oregon Health & Science University 
3181 SW Sam Jackson Park Road 
Portland, OR 97239 

OHSU Contract Representative 

Kim Royce.Johnson 
Senior Contracts Specialist 

Revised and Approved by Legal Counsel: December 15, 2015 

CONTRACTOR 
Address for Notices (if different from above) 

Date 



























   

NORTH CENTRAL PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

“Caring For Our Communities” 
 
 

Directors Report for the Board of Health:   March 8, 2016 
 
 
Strategic Planning:   Due to staffing capacity issues, we were not able to complete the 
strategic planning document this month.  I am hoping to have it completed for adoption 
in April. 
 
Staffing:  
Hayli Eisland is our new TPEP Coordinator and starts on March 7th.  As discussed at 
the last meeting, Dr. McDonell will fill the reproductive health clinician role.  Due to 
some significant issues with nursing staffing, I have been covering the Communicable 
Disease role 2 days per week and covering the clinic 1 half day per week.  This 
significantly impacts my ability to carry out the administrative roles of my position.  It is 
anticipated that there will be some relief to this issue next week.   
 
Community Engagement:   
Work continues with CGCCO through both the Clinical Advisory Panel and the 
Community Advisory Council.  In addition, we participate on the Dental Coalition and the 
‘Corner Pocket Team’ which is addressing the Community Health Assessment.  Work 
with EOCCO continues with the LCAC’s in Sherman and Gilliam Counties.  We continue 
to partner around early learning efforts through the 4Rivers Early Learning HUB, Local 
Early Childhood Committees, Breastfeeding Coalition, and Home Visiting 
Network/Connections and work with individual partners including OCDC and others. 
 
We participate on the LPSCC’s for each of the 3 Counties when possible.   The work 
around obesity discussion has created new partnerships with City of The Dalles 
Planning Department. 
 
Columbia Gorge Health Council Funding: 
As of today, I have not received the MOU outlining the specifics of the funding from 
CGHC.  Coco assures me that it is coming soon.  I prepared and emailed out the 
proposal leadership team agreed upon.  I look forward to feedback if you have it.  
 
Modernization Assessment: 
One of the deliverables to the legislature following the Modernization of Public Health 
Task force completed their work was an assessment of what it will take for LHD’s to 
meet the requirements of the foundational capabilities and programs.  This assessment 
has taken a significant amount of both mine and Kathi Hall’s time.   
 
 
 


	Agenda
	2-9-16 BOH Meeting Minutes
	CGCCO Funding Proposal
	Budget Calendar - DRAFT
	CIS - Risk Management Plan
	A/P Checks Issued Report - Feb 2016
	VISA Credit Card Policy - DRAFT
	Travel Policy - DRAFT
	OHSU PSC-2016-0858 Contract 
	1004396 Wasco-CaCoon Amendment 1
	Directors Report - March 2016



